&

. 1
Form No. 10 ?00 RV A D

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS
TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS

HINAME :

HISTORIC Matthews House

AND/OR COMMON

PALOCATION . 6 n e
= Qa1 A0 * LEL- 3 ’
STREET & NUMBER /V = '}f - ] ~
(Mailing Address: Route 1, Box 80, Danburg, Georgia) —.NOT FOR PUBLICATION
CITY, TOWN \ CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
‘chennault QoA g At ity o 10th -~ Robert G. Stephens, Jr.
STATE ) 0 CODE COUNTY CODE
—— Georgais 13 Lincoln 181
. CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
: __DISTRICT __PUBLIC Xoccuried X AGRICULTURE —MUSEUM
: X_BUILDING(S) X PRIVATE ~— UNOCCUPIED —COMMERCIAL __PARK
‘ _STRUCTURE __BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS -—EDUCATIONAL X PRIVATE RESIDENCE
__SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT _RELIGIOUS
i —OBJECT —IN PROCESS X YES: RESTRICTED —GOVERNMENT —SCIENTIFIC
' __BEING CONSIDERED ——YES: UNRESTRICTED _INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
—NO —MILITARY __OTHER:
' NAME

Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Matthews
3 STREET & NUMBER
Route 1, Box 80

-CITY. TOWN STATE
Danburg _X_ VICINITY OF : Georgia
EJLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION
COURTHOUSE. .
REGISTRY OF DEEDS;ETC. Lincoln County Courthouse

STREET & NUMBER

CITY, TOWN ' ' STATE
Lincolnton Georgia
KA REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
© O OTITLE : '
‘ None
DATE

—FEDERAL __STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY, TOWN - STATE




DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE

X_EXCELLENT —DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X ORIGINAL SITE
—GOOD —RUINS X ALTERED —MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANGE

The Matthews House is located on the east side of State Highway 79, the old Augusta
Road, approximately thirteen miles north of Lincolnton, Lincoln County, Georgia, and
approximately a third of a mile south of the intersection of State Highways 79 and 44. It
is a Greek Revival frame weatherboarded structure, built in the late 1850's, with a full
width two story portico with a full width cantilevered gallery which probably early in this
century, was given additicnal support by iron bands suspended from rafters in the roof. Thd
pitched gabled roof supports two central chimneys, serving eight interior fireplaces. A
shed roof, with boxed cornices or returns, spans the width of the rear facade and was
originally filled in on the south end, leaving a small porch which was enclosed in two stags
in this century. The acreage on which the house is located consists of field and wood land
which has been in the Matthews family since Joseph Fenton Mathews and his wife Lutetia,
settled there in the 1840's.

The five-bayed portico of the front or west facade is supported by six fluted Doric
columns which are spaced at equal intervals beneath an entablature decorated only by a
thin, continuous molding and a row of dentils under the eave of the roof. The balusters of
the gallery are, by comparison, more ornate with their lathed rolls and swells perhaps
intentionally suggestive of the muscular strength implied by the entasis of the earliest
Greek columns of the Doric order, a feature which is otherwise only approximated here in the’
tapering of the fluted wood columns. The single, six~paneled door of the central portal of
the first story of this facade has a transom and sidelights, is flanked by fluted moldings
and is topped by a flat, slightly pedimented lintel with a boxed lintel above it which frames
the pedimental shape. To either side of this portal, set directly behind the second columnS‘
from the ends of the portico, are shuttered double windows, each of the four windows having
four over four large panes of glass. The straight boxed lintels above these double windows
complement well the lintel of the central portal. The second story of this facade has four
single six over six paned windows, two to either side of a transomed and sidelighted six
paneled door to the gallery. The ornateness of the gallery balustrade is balanced by the
simplicity of the flat-window and door frames on this story.

The north and south elevations are alike in that they both continue features which occwu
on the front or west facade. On the first story towards the front of the house on both these
elevations there is a double window with boxed. lintel identical to those beneath the portico,
Indeed, the elements of the portico.itself are continued on these side elevations, and the
fact that the portico is contained beneath the roof of the house is emphasized by the use of
long boxed cornices or returns at the base of the gables. In each gable occurs a smaller
double window, lacking the boxed lintel, and having a pair of six over four paned windows
but reiterating the essential feature of the double form as it is seen on the first story.
Two single windows towards the front of the house on the second story repeat the window
arrangement on the second story of the west facade. And the single window towards the back
of the house on both these elevations repeats the single window around the corner on the
east facade.

The east or back facade displays a simple arrangement, with three single windows
equidistant from one another placed on the second story. On the first story, there was
originally an asymmetrical arrangement, caused by the necessity of locating the dining room
on the southeast corner of the first floor, close to the kitchen which was originally
located off the south side of the house towards the southeast corner and was approached fron
the dining room by a covered walkway. One original outbuilding remains, a smokehouse
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approximately twenty-five feet from the rear of the house. Two small barns off the south
east corner of the house were built, probably in the last years of the 19th century, by

" Walter Matthews, the father of the present owner. The only other outbuilding close to
the house is a small dwelling built by the present owner, next to Highway 79, to house
a caretaker. It does not obstruct the view of the MatthewsHouse from the road.

The interior of the first story of the Matthews House has a central hall with four
surrounding rooms, the front two of which are eighteen feet square and the back two of
which are of unequal size with the northeast corner room being twelve by eighteen feet
and the southeast corner room being eighteen feet square. The east end of the central
hall has a double door, with transom but no sidelights, which leads to the back porch.-
Each of these two doors has four vertical panels, as do all the interior doors of the
house. All the interior doors and the exterior doors off the central hall display their
original oak graining. The moldings of all three interior doors off this first story
hallway are identical on the hallway side, but the molding pattern is repeated on the
other side of only the two front rooms, where the same pattern occurs on all four inte-
rior double window moldings. The northeast corner room side of the third hallway door
molding displays a less complex arrangement of beveling and has no beading, unlike the
other moldings. It is this care to the visual accentuation of the two first story
front rooms through the use of identical and complex moldings around the doors and double
windows that indicates these four windows are original to the house.

A straight stair leads from the central hall on the first floor to the central hall
on the second floor. The two front rooms off the central hall on the second floor are
eighteen feet square, while the back two rooms are twelve by eighteen feet. As on the
first story, closets flank the fireplaces in front and rear rooms on the north side of
the house. With the exception of the mantels in the front two rooms on the first story,
all mantels in the house consist of a simple arrangement of plain flat pilasters support-
ing an unadorned entablature atop which rests a beveled shelf. However, the mantels in
the two front rooms of the first story, in keeping with the emphasis on the decorative
elaboration of these two rooms, display in their pilasters a pair of single lancets in
the northwest room and a pair of single cusped lancets in the southwest room. Further,
in the northwest room on this story there is a broad beaded picture molding and a central
oval floral medallion.

A second straight stair leads from the central hall on the second floor to the
attic. The roof structure of the attic is identical to that of the Chennault House,
Lincoln County, with four supporting interior posts joining purlins halfway down each
slope. However, here at the Matthews House, the attic was partially floored when the
house was built, creating a square central hall with two doors meant to provide access
to two additional rooms. These two rooms were never floored.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Matthews House pertains to its architecture and its position
in local history in the years just before the Civil War. The family tradition, which Mr.
and Mrs. Wayne Matthews -- the present owners and occupants of the house -- feel certain
is correct, is that the Matthews House was begun by Joseph Matthews, Wayne Matthews great-
grandfather, that it took three years to build and that it was completed just before the
beginning of the Civil War. This tradition is supported by the documentary évidence, for a
carpenter by the name of John Cunningham and a painter by the name of Benjamin Sayer were
living with the Matthews in 1860, according to the Census of that year.

The major architectural significance of the Matthews House resides in its relationship
to three other houses, the Willis-Sale~Stennett House in Wilkes County, Georgia, the
Chennault House, in Lincoln County, Georgia, and the Anderson House, in Wilkes County
Georgia. (See National Register nominations for all three.) All four houses are found withi
a six mile radius, but their properties are not continguous, and thus as a group they do
not form a district in the usual sense. As a group, however, they do form a stylistic
development which is most probably attributable to the influence of a single master builder
in the years just before and after the Civil War.

While documentary evidence indicates that the Willis-Sale-Stennett House was completed
in 1857, the documentary evidence for the Matthews House indicates that it was completed by
1861. Likewise, the Chennault House seems to have been begun between 1857 and 1858, and tle
Anderson House between 1865 and 1870. Thus there is the likelihood based on the documentary
evidence that, while the construction of the Chennault House was probably begun before the
construction of the Matthews House, for a time these two were belng worked on simulta-
neously. )

The stylistic evidence supports the documentary evidence. On the basis of stylistic
analysis, the Willis-Sale-Stennett House is most reasonably understood as the first built
in the series, being a fairly predictable example of the late Greek Revival style. The
second in the series, upon this visual analysis, would seem to be the Chennault House, whicH
is similar in appearance to the Willis-Sale-Stennett House, particularly in its incorpora-
tion of the portico with the main body of the house and, more generally, in its character-
istic late Greek Revival robustness.

The next house in the series would seem then to be the Matthews House, a variation on
a theme, as it were. Its portico is also beneath the roof, and it, like the portico of
the Chennault House, has a full width balcony, but the round columns of the portico of the
Matthews House are fluted and have more elaborate Doric capitals, resulting in a visual
complexity which exceeds the simplicity of the Chennault House. The Matthews House, like
the Chennault House has tall double windows on the first story, but they are emphasized by
fully three-dimensional boxed lintels, rather than the flat lintels of the Chennault House.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The western corner of the boundary of the Matthews House site is located on State Highw y
79, at the intersection of State Highway 79 and the Prater property line, approximately

1500 feet southeast of the intersection of State Highways 79 and 44. From thence the bound-
.ary follows the Prater property line, forming a straight line in a northeéasterly directiog.
for approximately 1900 feet to the northern corner of the Matthews House site boundary. The
"boundary then turns to the southeast and forms a straight line for approximately 1,000 feet

ta the easir_grn corner. The boundarv then turns to the southwest and formg a stralght line
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The Anderson House, as the fourth in this series, when compared with the Matthews
House, is seen as dependent upon an even greater complexity in its decorative detailing,
while the house as a whole retains the massive girth combined with the use of many large
windows to open up the walls which are two features common to all four houses. Indeed,
while the use of double windows on the Chennault and Matthews Houses is an indication of
the influence of Victorian architectural forms upon the pre-existant late Greek Revival !
style, exemplified by the Willis-Sale-Stennett House, the addition of brackets and lattice
work to the entablature of the Anderson House portico is evidence of the increasing
influence of the Victorian on the late Greek Revival immediately after the Civil War.

John Cunningham, the carpenter living with the Matthews in 1860 according to the
Census, may well have been one of the carpenters if not the master builder, who worked on
the first three houses of this sequence of four. 1In 1860, he was thirty years old and at
age twenty-three and twenty-four in 1853 and 1854 Joseph F. Matthews acted as his Agent
in the paying of his poll tax. This does not mean that John Cunningham was necessarily
residing with the Matthews at that time, but it does imply that Cunningham was at least
in the vicinity. In 1855, a William Stokes, living in the same District as the Matthews,
acts as Cunningham's Agent, but in 1856 and 1857 Cunningham pays his own tax and is living
by himself, though still in the Matthews' District (the Goshen District of Lincoln
County). The tax records are lost from 1859 and 1860, but the 1861 Tax Digest does not
list John Cunningham in either the Goshen District or any adjacent District.

The implication is that his carpentry work in the area in which these four houses
were built was completed by 1861. It is quite possible that as an inexperienced artisan
in his early twenties this John Cunningham worked on the Willis~Sale-Stennett House,
learning the essentials of the Greek Revival vocabularly. With greater confidence he
alone may have handled the commissions of the Chennaults and Matthews, successfully
experimenting with architectural forms as he worked. A two man treadle saw, which the
Wayne Matthews have given to the Washington, Georgia, museum, may have been of Cunning-
ham's making. Certainly, that Cunningham disappears from local records in 1861 supports
local tradition that these three houses were done before the Civil War.

Whether the builder of the Anderson House was someone who had worked with John |
Cunningham or was someone who was influenced solely by the results of Cunningham's work
can probably never be determined. One Danburg tradition states that a black carpenter
directed the building of the Anderson House, and curiously ten black carpenters or brick
masons appéar in the 1870 Wilkes and Lincoln County census records. But, regardless of
the identity of the builder(s); these four houses form a valuable sequence, both
aesthetically pleasurable and instructively useful.
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Verbal Boundary Description (cont.)

for approximately 1900 feet to the southern corner of the boundary where this segment
of the boundary intersects with State Highway 79. The boundary then turns in a north-
westerly direction, following State Highway 79 for approximately 1100 feet, back to the
beginning point.
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